NanoScience Technology



Journalhomepage: https://jnanoscitec.com

Nano drug delivery systems as promising tools for cancer therapy

Z. Abbasi Radmoghaddam^{a,b}, M. Dastjerdi^b, N. Garaei^b, E. Mohammadi^b, S. Akbari^b, G. Torkamandsarabi^b, A. Akbari^{a*}

^aGreenNanoTech Kft, Király Utca 80, Budapest, 1068, Hungary ^bNanoSciTec GmbH, Hermann Weinhauser str. 67, Munich, 81867, Germany

Abstract

Despite the remarkable medical advances, cancer is still a lethal threat to humans, causing tremendous social and economic problems. The emerging and following developments of nanomedicine for cancer therapy during past recent years brought outstanding achievements to the healthcare industry. Nanoparticle-based carriers to deliver various anti-cancer drugs opened new doors to boost the efficiencies of conventional chemotherapeutic approaches and decrease serious side effects. Although some challenges like drug resistance, instability, inappropriate accumulation, and drug leakage have remained, some delivery systems have achieved hopeful results in clinical trials, and consequently, some of them were approved by U.S Food and Drug Administration (FDA). In this review, the most essential and promising anticancer drug delivery systems for cancer treatment, particularly non-small cell lung cancer (NSCLC), are described. The primary emphasis was on evaluating different FDA-Approved ones in order to get a comprehensive grasp of their benefits and drawbacks for future research and industrial uses.

Keywords: Cancer therapy, Drug delivery systems, NSCLC, Lipid nanocarriers, Nanomedicine, Targeted delivery

© Article info: Accepted by: 12 August 2022, Published by: 24 August 2022.

Table of Contents

1. Introduction	9			
2. Anti-cancer drugs				
2.1 Alkylating Agents				
2.2 Antimetabolites				
2.3 Topoisomerase Inhibitors				
2.4 Antitumor Antibiotics	11			
2.5 Mitotic Spindle Toxic Agents				
2.6 Targeted Therapies				
2.7 Immunotherapies				
3. Potential nano drug delivery systems				
3.1 Application of drug delivery systems in cancer therapy14				

^{*} Corresponding author: A. Akbari. Tel.: +36-20-453-7574 *E-mail address*: armita.akbari@greennanotec.com

3.2 Popular drug delivery systems	
3.2.1 Liposome	
3.2.2 Micelles	
3.2.3 Cyclodextrin (CD)	
3.2.4 Mesoporous Silica Nanoparticle (MSN)	
4. Social and economic effect of cancer treatment strategies	
4.1. Ways to reduce the cost of cancer	
4.1.1 Lung cancer / costs / smoking	
4.2. Pharmacogenomics	
4.3. Nanocarriers / benefits / costs	
5. Conclusion	23
6. References	23

1. Introduction

Cancer is characterized by abnormal and uncontrolled Cancer is characterized by abnormal and uncontrolled growth of cells in the body. In fact, when some disorders happen in the crucial processes of cell proliferation, the cells are provoked to have some mutations in an unusual way which ultimately results in emerging cancerous cells. Some of the roots related to this unusual behavior of cells are smoking and the rising effects of some risk factors for instance stress pressure, and being overweight [1].

Recently, cancer incidence has been known as a gradually increasing issue. World Health Organization (WHO) reported cancer as the second most serious cause of death worldwide with approximately 7.6 million death every year which is 13% of total death. According to their findings, lung cancer ranks first or second among malignant tumors, with death and morbidity rates of 18% and 11.4%, respectively [2]. Furthermore, cancer after cardiovascular diseases is known as the most challenging issue with a heavy burden of economic and social effects globally [3]. On the other hand, by considering the current situation and main causes of cancer, it is predicted that cancer-related mortality will reach 13.1 million by 2030 [4].

Histologically lung cancer is divided into two major groups: non-small cell lung cancer (NSCLC) and small-cell lung cancer (SCLC). NSCLC accounts for about 85% of all cases. Surgery, chemotherapy, and radiotherapy medications, as the three main systemic methods, were used in therapeutic approaches for cancer treatment for years. Despite various side effects from these methods and dramatic damage to patients' bodies, particularly in metastatic cases, they still are used for cancer therapy solely or sometimes in combination forms. However, chemotherapy is the most preferred method for lung cancer treatment as surgery and resection did not show satisfying results in more than 75% of the patients [5].

In recent years, scientists have been working on novel methods to mix some approaches that may get the highest efficiency. In this path, while many new anticancer agents have been emerging with higher effectiveness, some challenges, such as drug resistance, low drug solubility and stability, and poor delivery of anti-cancer drugs to the determined points (target cancer cells) make it difficult to get the permission from U.S Food and Drug Administration (FDA) to commercialize the final product(s) because of severe problems for human health. In general, chemotherapeutic drugs include toxic compounds that attack cancer cells and inevitably affect normal cells. They also are spread via the body non-specifically. Hence, it can be estimated to see various harmful side effects [6]. Therefore, these issues push researchers to find novel strategies to improve efficiencies. One of the most important methods is applying drug delivery systems (DDSs) to carry the specific drug by increasing its properties with the help of nanomedical approaches. The main mission of these carriers is to deliver drugs to the cancerous tissue/cells [7,8].

Nanomedicine is defined as a tool that uses nanotechnology to solve medical issues. In fact, nanotechnology plays a key role in medical science. Moreover, in today's world, nanotechnology has gained significant attention for cancer therapeutic goals and impressed drug delivery and diagnostics in an outstanding way [9].

Nanoparticles in terms of their special size (10-100nm) and surface area illustrated valuable properties as drug carriers, especially regarding the circulation and accumulation in the bloodstream. The enhanced permeability and retention (EPR) effect helps nanoparticles remain in the tumor cells. Besides, many pieces of research showed nanocarriers could increase the water solubility of drugs alongside improving biodistribution, and biological and pharmacological features [6,10,11]. They can deliver medicines to tumor cells with a little amount of drug leakage into healthy cells. Thus, targeted therapy has emerged to specifically target cancerous cells using useful tools, such as promising nanocarriers [10]. While several nano-drug delivery systems were studied so far, there is a need to improve their structures with beneficial methods which not only can improve their efficacy, but also make them available in the market at a reasonable price. In this review, various types of potential anticancer drugs and nanocarriers are described to have a better understanding of their applications and functions. Moreover, the strong capability of the popular nano drug delivery systems for cancer treatment, especially NSCLC, is explained from scientific and economic viewpoints.

2. Anti-cancer drugs

In general, there are different categories of anti-cancer drugs, and one of the best categories is divided into seven groups: alkylating agents, antimetabolites, topoisomerase inhibitors, antitumor antibiotics, mitotic spindle toxic agents, targeted therapies, and immunotherapies [12].

2.1 Alkylating Agents

Alkylating agents produce alkylation via the formation of covalent links among DNA strands. They result in abnormal nucleotide sequences, miscoding of messenger RNA, blockade of DNA replication, and breakage of DNA strands.

This category is divided into six groups:

- The nitrogen mustards (mechlorethamine, cyclophosphamide, ifosfamide, melphalan, and Chlorambucil);
- Ethylenamine and methylenamine derivatives (altretamine, thiotepa);
- Alkyl sulfonates (busulfan);
- Nitrosoureas (carmustine, lomustine);
- Triazenes (dacarbazine, procarbazine, temozolomide);
- Platinum compounds. Agents similar to alkylating agents crosslink with DNA (cisplatin, carboplatin, and oxaliplatin) [13,14]

Although the reactions of such alkylating agents are not specific to one phase of the cell cycle, their toxicity is particularly strong in the late 1st Gap phase (G1 phase) and synthesis phase (DNA duplicate) (S phase). They are also known as carcinogens and can cause hematologic malignancies [15]. Alkylating agents and platinum derivatives are useful to manage solid tumors because of their broad anticancer spectrum. Hence, they suffer from acute systemic toxicity, suboptimal treatment schedules, intrinsic or acquired resistance. and inadequate routing at the cellular level [16]. Despite major clinical side effects in terms of inhibiting the metabolic processes of normal cells, chemotherapy is still the most common treatment for many types of cancer in terms of its long-term therapeutic effectiveness [13,17,18]. Neutropenia and lymphopenia, for instance, are well-known as chemotherapy's side effects [19]. Zhou et al., who investigated the resistance mechanisms in platinumbased chemotherapy, showed a decrease in the accumulation of cellular drugs and apoptosis and autophagy. They also reported an increase in DNA repair process and in the detoxification system, a decrease. Platinum is used following the initial treatment period with these drugs [20]. Combined treatment with other drugs is one of the research projects which were done to reduce the side effects and improve the effectiveness of the drugs of this family. In this regard, Paz-Ares et al. showed that in squamous NSCLC, Pembrolizumab as an option for immunotherapy led to an improvement in the median OS (overall survival) in combination with carboplatin and taxane chemotherapy [21]. In the study of Gadgeel et al., it was seen that Pembrolizumab combined with pemetrexed and platinum chemotherapy as a treatment for non-squamous NSCLC without EGFR or ALK

mutations led to an improvement in median overall survival [22].

2.2 Antimetabolites

This group of materials competes with the natural substrate to reach the active site of an essential enzyme or receptor which interferes with DNA synthesis. They include three popular categories as follows:

- Antifolates (methotrexate and pemetrexed)
- Pyrimidine analog (cytarabine, 5-fluorouracil, and gemcitabine)
- Purine analogs (6-mercaptopurine, azathioprine) [23]

Methotrexate decreases the concentration of tetrahydrofolate (THF) in the cells by inhibiting dihydrofolate reductase (DHFR) enzyme and reducing the purine nucleotide and DNA synthesis [24]. Among the side effects of folate, the main antagonists are bone marrow suppression, gastric and intestinal mucositis, as well as kidney failure in high doses [25]. Gemcitabine is used against various solid tumors, including lung and pancreas cancers [26,27]. Neutropenia, proteinuria, increased hepatic transaminase levels, nausea, vomiting, and skin rash are side effects of high-dose gemcitabine include [28]. Overexpression of ribonucleotide reductases is one of the causes of gemcitabine resistance [29]. Pemetrexed is a folic acid analog and a potent inhibitor of pyrimidine and purine [30]. This drug inhibits vital enzymes. such as glycinamide ribonucleotide formyltransferase (GARFT), aminoimidazolecarboxamide ribonucleotide formyltransferase (AICARFT), thymidylate and synthase (TS) [30-32]. Resistance mechanisms of pemetrexed include overexpression of TS, suppression of the folate transporter SLC19A1, and Akt activation [33,34]. To reduce the side effects and improve the anti-tumor properties of these drugs, anti-PD-1 or anti-PD-L1 drugs, including durvalumab, pembrolizumab, and nivolumab, are the preferred options for immunotherapy. Nucleotide antimetabolites, such as Gemcitabine, 5 FU, Pemetrexed, Decitabine are also used along with anti-PD-1 and/or anti-PD-L1 [35,36].

2.3 Topoisomerase Inhibitors

Topoisomerases are enzymes that control the changes in DNA function by catalyzing the phosphodiester structure of DNA strands during the cell cycle. On the one hand, Camptothecin derivatives (irinotecan, topotecan) exert their cytotoxic effect by inhibiting topoisomerase I. On the other hand, Epipodophyllotoxin derivatives (etoposide, teniposide) inhibit topoisomerase II.

the topoisomerases are Typically, considered important targets for therapeutic intervention because they play a significant role in DNA replication and recombination, as well as transcription and repair [37,38]. They show poor solubility, prolonged half-life in plasma, and accumulation in target tissues or organs. Furthermore, complications can arise in terms of the overproduction of enzymes by the target cells, conformational changes in the enzyme structure, and gene mutations leading to drug resistance [39,40]. topoisomerase inhibitors DNA are valuable instruments that allow us to investigate the biological topoisomerases Topoisomerase roles of [41]. inhibitors come in two different varieties: Topoisomerase poisons that predominantly inhibit type I topoisomerases include topotecan, irinotecan, camptothecin. belotecan, and In general, topoisomerase poisons or Type I topoisomerase inhibitors stop strand rotation after which the link between topoisomerase and DNA is firmed. Etoposide, teniposide, doxorubicin, and mitoxantrone are topoisomerase poisons that primarily affect type II topoisomerases [42]. Since topoisomerase inhibitors, such as camptothecin suffer from low solubility, selectivity, and high systemic toxicity, as well as fast clearance from blood circulation, these nano-delivery systems may provide an excellent opportunity to improve their characteristics for potential clinical applications [43].

2.4 Antitumor Antibiotics

Antitumor antibiotics act by several mechanisms: DNA strand breaks, intercalation between DNA base inhibition of topoisomerase pairs, and 2. Anthracyclines (daunorubicin, doxorubicin, liposomal doxorubicin, epirubicin, idarubicin), bleomycin, mitomycin, and mitoxantrone are known as antitumor antibiotics. Mitomycin C is FDA-approved for the treatment of adenocarcinomas of the stomach and pancreas, while bleomycin is employed in squamous cell cancer, Hodgkin's disease, and germ cell tumors. Doxorubicin is an anthracycline glycoside antibiotic that intercalates between DNA bases and DNA topoisomerases inhibitor. It is also used for many cancer types but is primarily applied in breast carcinoma, ovarian cancer, and Hodgkin's disease [44]. Antibiotics, such as actinomycin D, anthracyclines, and the anthracenones were approved as anticancer agents [45]. The most constricting steps in this process are the toxic side effect, poor solubility, and decreased efficacy due to derivatization [46].

2.5 Mitotic Spindle Toxic Agents

Vinca alkaloids and Taxanes are two major groups of compounds in this category:

• Vinca alkaloids

These drugs bind to microtubular proteins (Mitosis phase (M-phase) of the cell cycle), which dissolve the mitotic spindle structure. Some of the drugs in this group are vinblastine, vincristine, vindesine, and vinorelbine [47].

• Taxanes

These drugs not only bind to microtubules but also help to form non-functional microtubules and resist depolymerization. Paclitaxel, docetaxel, and cabazitaxel are in this group. Some experimental evidence described the role of p53, bcl-2, and bcl-x and other gene products which are directly linked to the regulation of the equilibrium between cell proliferation and apoptosis. However, the antiproliferative cascade triggered by vinca alkaloids at the molecular level is not known yet [48].

2.6 Targeted Therapies

• Oldest targeted agents

Endocrine agents can slow down and stop the synthesis of hormones or prevent the action of hormones by blocking their receptors. These endocrine therapies are mainly prescribed in hormone-sensitive cancers, such as breast cancer (including tamoxifen, aromatase inhibitors, and luteinizing hormone-releasing hormone analogs) or prostate cancer (including antiandrogens and luteinizing hormone-releasing hormone analogs).

• Recently targeted therapies

According to the extensive studies that have been done so far, targeted treatments can be known as a key to the recovery of cancer patients. Various studies were conducted concerning the mechanisms of increasing EGFR signaling in cancer cells [49]. Many researchers studied different drugs that reduce EGFR activity. However, developing resistance to EGFR tyrosine kinase inhibitor drugs has become a challenge for researchers.

a. Kinase proteins

Protein Tyrosine kinases (PTKs) are enzymes that regulate the biological activity of proteins by phosphorylation of certain amino acid residues. This reaction causes a conformational change from an inactive form of the protein to an active form, which is one of the most important regulatory mechanisms of the cell cycle. Dysregulation of protein kinase activity is implicated in the processes of carcinogenesis and the progression of various solid cancers [50].

Tyrosine kinases (TKs) are enzymes that selectively phosphorylate the hydroxyl groups of a tyrosine residue in different proteins with adenosine triphosphate (ATP) as the source of phosphate. They play a role in regulating the most fundamental cellular processes. such as growth. differentiation. proliferation, or programmed cell death [51]. TKIs can block some of the tyrosine kinases involved in cell growth, like epidermal growth factor receptors (EGFR), vascular endothelial growth factor receptors (VEGFR), placket-derived growth factor receptors (PDGF), and fibroblast growth factor receptor (FGF).

Ceritinib, neratinib, osimertinib, pemigatinib, geftinib and erlotinib are some drugs in this group. Cyclinedependent kinases (CDK) are a family of serine theronine which regulate the cell cycle and other important cell functions like gene transcription and metabolism [52]. Abemaciclib, Ribociclib and Palbociclib are from this group.

In solid tumors, the unnormal activity of different parts of the signaling path occurs with activating multikinases. Multi-kinase inhibitor targets a group of structural kinases and blocks their activity simultaneously [53]. Palbociclib, Brigatinib, Afatinib, and Axitinib are among the famous drugs in this group.

The purpose of research in the anti-cancer drug discovery field, particularly for NSCLC cancer, is to understand the mechanisms of drug resistance in patients and improve treatment methods. Various research studied different drugs in the subgroups of NSCLC cancer, showing the importance of knowing these mechanisms and the initial examination of patients to prevent drug resistance. For example, the study by Soria et al. studied Osimertinib in removing exon 19 or L858R as the most important EGFR mutations in advanced NSCLC [54]. The study of Shaw et al. examined Crizotinib in positive rearrangements for ROS1 [55]. Moreover, the research work of Planchard et al. examined the two drugs Dabrafenib and Trametinib in BRAF mutation [56], and the study by Peters et al. examined Alectinib in ALK-positive NSCLC [57]. It was proved that a specific mutation of exon 20 of EGFR tyrosine kinase domain, known as T790M, causes acquired resistance of NSCLC patients in 50% to 60% of cases, especially in the first and second generation of tyrosine kinase inhibitors [58-61]. Other studies showed that this resistance spreads after 9 to 14 months from the start of treatment [62,63]. Contrary to the initial idea regarding the creation of this mutation by tumor cells during treatment, recent studies showed that T790M could be identified in a subgroup of NSCLC [64]. Therefore, it is hypothesized that the cells with this mutation remain after the first period of treatment and continue their activity. Thus, they may be responsible for the recurrence of the disease. In NSCLC patients with mutated EGFR, increased VEGF concentrations were observed via multiple mechanisms [65-68]. Over the past decade, there were several studies related to the combination of VEGF inhibitor and EGFR inhibitor. In the studies of Herbst et al. and Johnson et al., it was shown that the combined treatment of Bevacizumab plus Erlotinib improves patient survival compared to Erlotinib alone or Bevacizumab alone [69,70]. The clinical results of JO25567 trial showed an improved survival rate using these two drugs [71,72]. Several other studies showed similar results in the simultaneous use of EGFR and VEGF inhibitors [73-75]. The results of the above studies show the high efficiency of using two drugs, Erlotinib, and Bevacizumab. On the other hand, treatment with anti-EGFR monoclonal antibodies slows down the proliferation of tumor cells as a result of blocking this receptor. Anti-EGFR antibodies have been shown to improve the efficacy of other treatment methods in many investigations [76]. As a monoclonal antibody, cetuximab targets EGFR by blocking its ligands competitively [77,78]. In the studies of Gomes et al. and Iida et al., it was shown that the acquired resistance to cetuximab is related to the activation of the mTOR/PI3K/AKT signaling axis [79,80]. This axis is suppressed in treating EGFR tyrosine kinase inhibitors, especially Erlotinib. Considering the mechanism of activity and resistance of this drug and EGFR tyrosine kinase inhibitors, especially Erlotinib, it seems that using these two drugs in combination with each other can greatly help to prolong the resistance process of both drugs.

b. Monoclonal Antibodies (mAb)

Monoclonal Antibodies (mAb) are a special kind of antibody that bond to observed antigens. They attach to cell surfaces and activate the immune system. Their activities include blocking growth signals, preventing angiogenesis, and delivering radiation to cancer cells. The activity of mAbs leads to normalize growth rates and induces cancer cells' death via various mechanisms. Monoclonal antibodies are composed of two heavy and two light chains, which form three functional protein domains: two identical fragments for antigen binding (Fab regions) and one constant fragment (Fc region) [81]. Rituximab-abbs (CD20). Tafasitamab-cxix (CD19) and Isatuximab (CD38) are two examples of this group.

2.7 Immunotherapies

One immunotherapy approach is to block the activity of certain proteins that limit the strength of immune responses. Immunotherapy works by harnessing an anti-tumor immune response that is normally suppressed within the tumor microenvironment. CTLA-4 and PD-L1 are two pathways of the immune system that lead to tumor cell suppression. They are normal self-control mechanisms in the immune system which work to avoid autoimmunity and maintain tolerance to self-antigens. Tumor cells upregulate both inhibitory pathways to help evade the immune system [82,83]. Nivolumab and pembrolizumab are among the drugs in this group. Immunotherapy methods are mostly cell therapy, cancer vaccine, and monoclonal antibodies [84]. A phase 3 study conducted by Socinski et al., compared a quadruple combination regimen of bevacizumab, atezolizumab (anti-PD-L1), carboplatin, and paclitaxel chemotherapy with a triple regimen of this system without atezolizumab in nonsquamous NSCLC. In the median PFS, the results improvements in the regimen showed with atezolizumab [85]. Figure 1 gives an overall view of different anti-cancer drugs' mechanisms of action.



Figure 1. Schematic illustration of anticancer drugsnechanism of action

3. Potential nano drug delivery systems

3.1 Application of drug delivery systems in cancer therapy

Nanotechnology is a potential platform that innovates new approaches to discover novel applications of sciences such as molecular chemistry, pharmaceutical science, molecular science, and nutrition science.

Nowadays, nanotechnology has significant advances in cancer therapy, and it can be counted as a reliable method for cancer diagnosis and treatment.

One of the characteristics which make nano drug delivery unique for cancer treatment is providing a high surface-to-volume ratio. This feature can facilitate the absorption and transportation of small biomolecules, such as RNA, DNA, drugs, and proteins [86]. Nano-based drug delivery systems have more efficiency than traditional drug delivery systems. These systems are not only effective to boost the dugs' half-life, but also help to improve the solubility of hydrophobic drugs. Moreover, it allows for the controlled and targeted release of drugs in diseased sites [87]. The tumor targeting strategy appeared as an extraordinary method to access tumors. This method was divided into two categories, active and passive targeting. However, the process of active targeting occurs after passive accumulation in the tumor domain

[88]. A passive targeting mechanism recommends the kind of transport in which nanoparticles can have paracellular transportation from compromised blood vessels [89]. Nanoparticles preferentially accumulate in neoplastic tissues [90], consequently, EPR in this kind of targeting will increase [91]. In fact, the main cause of this phenomenon is the speedy formation of hyper-permeable complicated tumor vasculature characterized by impaired lymphatic drainage of diseased tissue (tumor). It will be followed by the extravasation of 100 nm nanoparticles into the tumor microenvironment and stopping their clearance [92]. In addition to reaching tumors passively via EPR effect, the engineered nanocarriers can target particular tumor cells by binding to receptors that are overexpressed in cancer cells, such as transferrin (TR), folate (FA), epidermal growth factor, and nucleolin receptors. When these overexpressed receptors are targeted by anticancer agents in a cancer microenvironment, the absorption of the agents by cancer cells will increase [93]. Although a passive targeting mechanism facilitates the efficient localization of nanoparticles, their absorption by cancer cells still has not been increased. In this case, using active targeting can be an effective approach [94].

In contrast to passive targeting, active targeting was designed based on the interaction between the carrier's surface and overexpressed tumor cell receptors like



Figure 2. Various groups of nano drug delivery systems for cancer therapy [97]

antibodies and aptamers [95]. Cellular absorption of drug-containing nanoparticles and therapeutic efficacy will rise by active interaction between ligands and surface cell receptors [96]. If the nanoparticle binds to vascular endothelial cells via a non-internal epitope, high local concentrations of the drug will be available to the target cell [98]. However, this type of drug delivery is highly efficient but only some fractions of the released drug reach the target cell [99]. In most cases, nanoparticle internalization is important for the effective delivery of some anticancer drugs, especially in gene silencing and biotherapy [100]. So, it is necessary to find optimization methods for targeted therapy.

3.2 Popular drug delivery systems

There was a lot of research focused on drug delivery systems development for cancer therapy like liposomes, micelles, cyclodextrin (CD), mesoporous silica nanoparticle (MSNs), gold nanoparticles, dendrimers, carbon nanotubes, quantum dots, etc. [101-103]. Some group's schematics were shown in figure 2. This review will briefly discuss four groups of the most popular delivery systems, including liposomes, micelles, CDs, and mesoporous silica nanoparticles (MSNs).

3.2.1 Liposome

Liposomes are one of the most popular nanoparticles of the lipid family used for drug delivery systems. They are made to imitate the cell membrane and consist of phospholipids (Phosphatidylethanolamine,

phosphatidylcholine from soybean, egg yolk, or lecithin), which are amphiphilic cholesterol to control fluidity, stearylamine (positively charged) and ordicetylphosphate (negatively charged) [104-106]. These phospholipids set up themselves bv hydrophobic interactions. They shape bilayer membranes that include an inner aqueous compartment that allows for the incorporation of hydrophilic or lipophilic pharmaceuticals that may be placed in the hydrophilic section or on one of the sides of the bilayer membrane [107]. Some interesting properties of the liposome's structure include non-toxic nature, physical stability, high-vascular density, good maintenance time at the target site, and surface-changing ability by external stimuli [108]. Liposomes were classified based on their size, the number of layers, and how they are synthesized [109]. A liposome that is smaller than 100 nm can be classified as a single liposome vesicle (SUV), and if it is bigger than 100 nm it is known as unilamellar liposome vesicle (LUV) [110]. Targeted drug delivery strategies by liposomes include active and passive targeting, magnetic-responsive, thermoresponsive, and stimuli-responsive targeting which results in reducing the toxicity of soluble drugs [93]. Conventional liposomes known as C-liposomes are beneficial groups of liposomes that can get readily omitted from the blood by opsonins and the reticuloendothelial system. So, the encapsulated drug can be consequently released in plasma easily [111]. Smart or intelligent liposomes are the kind of liposomes that represent more efficiency for lung cancer therapy. They consist of bilayer phospholipids, surface modifiers, and some other covering molecules

[112]. This type of liposome enables target mitochondria and PH-sensitivity to prevent energy production in the cell and finally induce apoptosis. It also reduces the chance of MDR (Multi-drug resistance) in the cells [113]. The first FDA-approved liposome was the PEGylated liposomal doxorubicin or in short Doxil (in 1995). Doxil was used to treat some types of cancers, such as metastatic ovarian cancer and AIDS-related Kaposi's sarcoma [114]. In this structure of doxorubicin, a member of the anthracycline group is enclosed in a single-layered liposome. Meanwhile, the liposome is coated by PEG (Distearoylphosphatidyl-ethanolamine-PEG (DSPE-PEG) anchored into the phospholipid bilayers made of hydrogenated soy phosphatidylcholine and cholesterol) with a size of 80-90 nm [115]. This structure permits the drug to remain in the bloodstream for a longer period. Consequently, a larger amount of the drug reaches the target cell. Moreover, this product is designed to balance the efficacy and toxicity ratios of doxorubicin therapy [116]. Doxorubicin is loaded in liposomes by the ammonium ion gradient method. It is estimated that through intravenous injection each liposome can contain 10,000 to 15,000 DXR molecules with a lipid-in-drug ratio of 0.125 [117]. Another FDA-approved drug is a cytotoxic agent known as cisplatin (cis-diamino dichloro-platinum).

Some studies showed when cisplatin was encapsulated with liposome new products were produced in various clinical steps. They were named nanoplatin or OSI-211(clinical trial phase 1), SPI-77(clinical trial phase 2), and Lipusu (clinical trial phase 4). The last compound has been approved by the European medicine agency and now it has been tested as the first line against NSCLC [115,118,119]. Lipoplatin's average diameter is 110 nm, and the cisplatin is encapsulated in a liposome shell consisting of soy phosphatidyl choline dipalmitoyl phosphatidyl glycerol, cholesterol, and methoxy-polyethylene glycol-distearoyl phosphatidylethanolamine lipid conjugate. In this structure, the cisplatin's ratio to lipid is 8.9%: 91.1%(w/w) [120]. Lipoplatin works as a topoisomerase I inhibitor with very low hematological and digestive toxicity. Unlike cisplatin, lipoplatin did not show any nephrotoxicity or neurotoxicity [121]. Liposomal Paclitaxel or LEP-ETU with an average particle size of 150 nm which is in phase 2 of the clinical trial is considered one of the useful nanoparticles in NSCLC therapy. LEP-ETU is synthesized by a modified thin film hydration method.

In this method, hydrophobic excipients, such as lipids (phosphatidylcholine, cholesterol, and cardiolipin), paclitaxel, and TAS, are dissolved in ethanol and transferred to a round bottom flask. The development of paclitaxel utilizing a novel liposomal formulation demonstrated that ideal physical and chemical properties are possible. The basic results from clinical trials phase 1 and 2 have proved that LEP-ETU is administered easily without any pre-medication. Therefore, the patient can tolerate up to a dose of 325 mg with minimal side effects [122]. One of the newest methods to treat lung cancer via inhalation is bacteriotherapy, where paclitaxel is placed in a liposome and the liposome is located inside the bacteria (E. coli or L. casei). This compound was called the LPB complex. LPB's test is still in the in vivo stage, however, this drug has succeeded significantly to inhibit the proliferation of type A549 cancer cells via the induction of apoptosis [123].

Liposomal vaccines were studied for cancer treating. Stimuvax is a liposomal vaccine with BLP25 lipopeptide to target MUC1 tumor-associate antigen. BLP25 composition is monophosphoryl lipid A, cholesterol, DMPG, and DPPC. It showed a 31% rate of 3-year survival in non-small-cell lung carcinoma in phase 3 of the clinical trial. Furthermore, no significant toxicity was observed in the cancer treatment using this drug [124]. Liposomes can be functionalized with different components like aptamers which are single synthetic strands and short chains produced from DNA or RNA [125]. The docetaxel liposome surface modified by CD133 aptamer showed a significant antitumor activity for lung cancer targeting in mice models and in vivo conditions [126]. The liposomes were encapsulated by functionalized triptolideencapsulated which are anti-CA IX (conjugation of anti-CA-IX with DSPEPEG-Mal micelles and postinsertion with preformed liposomes). They showed high efficacy against lung cancer. In fact, after only eight treatment doses, it had the strongest anti-tumor effects. Furthermore, treated mice lived twice as long as the control group with an average survival time of up to 90 days [127]. Tables 1 and 2 illustrate various drug delivery systems based on liposomes used for cancer therapy.

3.2.2 Micelles

Micelles are self-assembled microstructures that are formed by surfactants in an aqueous medium. Their size ranges from less than 50 nm to more than 100 nm. This flexibility in size (especially when they are smaller than 50 nm), counts as one of their unique features [128]. Polymeric micelles are described as auto-assemblies in liquid shape. They are composed of amphiphilic macromolecules, in generic amphiphilic di- or tri-block copolymers fabricated from solvophobic and solvophilic blocks. Micelles can be widely used as physiological transport systems for hydrophobic drugs with low molecular mass, genes, and proteins [129]. Because micelles are often manufactured for injection in normal blood and the physiological milieu of the body, one of their weaknesses as drug carriers is their very poor stability when they are exposed to environmental changes. If the concentration of the environment in which the micelle floats is lower than the critical micelle forming

	Table 1. Li	posomal	nanodrugs	in the	clinical	trial
--	-------------	---------	-----------	--------	----------	-------

concentration (CMC), it will lead to the phenomenon of explosive release of the drug before reaching the desired environment [130]. The early release of the drug can affect the duration of stability in the blood circulation and the high drug loading at the site on which our nanocarrier is designed. So, the result of treatment, in this case, will be completely similar to unprotected drugs. Micellar drug Taxotere is one of these kinds of micelles that quickly leave the bloodstream after intravenous injection [131]. Despite the mentioned weakness, the positive feature of micelles, i.e. flexibility in size, cannot be ignored. Strategies, such as covalent crosslinking were implemented to increase the stability of micelles. This method includes shell-crosslinked micelles and corecrosslinked micelles [132]. Docetaxel (DTX) like paclitaxel (PTX) was approved by FDA for clinical application and it is widely prescribed to treat lung cancer. One of the noteworthy nanoparticles that can load PTX or DTX well is composed of polyethylene glycol (PEG) and cholic acid (CA)-based micellar

TRADE NAME	CARRIER TYPE	INDICATION(S)	DEVELOPMENT STAGE
ONCO-TCS	Liposomal Vincristine	Non-Hodgkin Lymphoma	Phase I, II [133]
LEP-ETU	Liposomal Paclitaxel	Ovarian cancer Breast cancer Lung cancer	Phase I, II [134]
AROPLATIN	Liposomal Cisplatin analog	Colorectal cancer	Phase I, II [135]
SPI-77	Stealth Liposomal Cisplatin	Lung cancer	Phase III [136]
NAREKT -102	Irinotecan, PEGylated liposome	Breast cancer Colorectal cancer	Phase III [137]

	DRUG TYPE	CARRIER	INDICATIONS	STUDY STAGE
_	DOXORUBICIN	Liposome	Colorectal cancer	In-vitro In-vivo [138]
	OLEUROPEIN	PEGylated liposome	Prostate cancer	In-vitro In-vivo [139]
_	CURCUMIN	Liposome	Liver cancer	In-vitro [140]
	DNA PLASMID TUMOR PEPTIDES	Liposome-DNA	Gastric cancer	In-vitro [141]
	DOXORUBICIN	Peptide-ligand Liposome	Lung cancer	In-vitro In-vivo [142]
	TRIPTOLIDE	PEG-Mal micelles & postinsertion with preformed liposomes	Lung cancer	In-vitro [127]
	PACLITAXEL & RAPAMYCIN	Liposome	Breast cancer	In-vitro [143]

Table 2. Liposomal nanodrugs in in-vitro/vivo experiments

system (PEG5K-CA8 telodendrimer (TD)). The CAbased micellar system has a great potential to carry hydrophobic drugs, such as DTX and PTX. It showed a high half-life in the bloodstream in in vivo environment as well [144]. One of the compounds that had a prominent inhibitory effect on CD 133+ lung cancer stem cells (CSCs) in in vivo environment and succeeded to inhibit tumor growth in the body was an amphiphilic prodrug (cisplatin-poly (ethylene glycol) block-polycaprolactone). It was shown that this prodrug formed micellar nanoparticles NPPt (IV) [145].

Another common type of micelles used to transport the paclitaxel is Cremophor-Free (Genexol-PM), which is polymeric micelle-formulated paclitaxel, and its recommended dosage is 300mg/m². This nanocarrier successfully passed the first phase of the clinical trial and is in the second phase. The current result of these studies showed that the toxicity of paclitaxel is greatly reduced when transferred by micelle carriers [146]. Another type of micelles in which docetaxel (DTX) is

loaded is polymeric mixed micelles that consist of Pluronic P105 and F127 copolymers. This compound was synthesized by thin-layer hydration method. In vivo pharmacokinetic study showed that this type of drug delivery inhibition rate of lung tumors is 69.05%. So, it seems that DTX-loaded P105/F127 mixed micelles can act as a potential system with relatively strong antitumor effects against multidrug resistance in lung cancer [147]. Estrasorb[™] or micellar formulation of estradiol is the only FDA-approved micelle used for topical treatment of moderate to severe vasomotor symptoms of menopause. So far, apart from this composition, no other micellar composition was approved by FDA, and the rest are in various phases of clinical trials and/or in vitro/vivo phases [148]. Table 3 shows the list of popular FDA-Approved liposome and micelle-based nanodrugs used for different diseases.

Table 3. FDA-approved liposomal and micellar nanomedicines

pRODUCT NAME	TYPE (ACTIVE INGRIDIENT)	INDICATION(S)	APPROVED DATE
daunoxome	Liposome encapsulated Daunorubicin	HIV-related Kaposi sarcoma	1996 [149]
depocyt	Liposomal Cytarabine	Lymphomatous meningitis	1999 [150]
Myocet	Liposome encapsulated Doxorubicin	Breast cancer	2000 [151]
DOXIL	PEGylated Liposome	AIDs-related Kaposi's sarcoma Multiple myeloma Ovarian and breast cancer	1995 [152]
Marqibo	Liposomal Vincristine	Acute Lymphoblastic Leukemia	2012 [153]
ONIVYDE	PEGylated Liposomal Irinotecan	Metastatic pancreatic cancer	2015 [154]
VYXEOS	Liposomal Daunorubicin and Cytarabine	Acute myeloid leukemia	2017 [155]
AmBisome	Liposomal Amphotericin B	Fungal/protozoal infections	1997 [156]
DepoDur	Liposomal Verteporfin	Macular degeneration histoplasmosis	2000 [157]
Abelcet	Liposomal Amphotericin B lipid Complex	Fungal infections	1995 [158]
Curosurf	Liposome-proteins SP-B And SP-C	pulmonary surfactant for Respiratory Distress Syndrome	1999 [159]
Genexol-PM	Paclitaxel-loaded polymeric micelle	Breast cancer small cell lung cancer	Marketed in Europe & Korea (It is not FDA-Approved) [160]

3.2.3 Cyclodextrin (CD)

Cyclodextrin is a cyclic oligosaccharide formed by linking six or more glucose subunits through α - 1, 4 glycosidic bonds. The enzymatic hydrolysis of starch produces these CD. Each CD has external hydrophilic and internal hydrophobic properties. This special structure made CDs widely effective in cancer treatment, nano drug delivery systems, gene therapy, and immunotherapy approaches [161]. They are divided into three categories based on the number of glucose subunits, which are named α -cyclodextrin (α -CD), β -cyclodextrin (β -CD), and γ -cyclodextrin (γ -CD), respectively [162]. CRLX101 is a CD-based camptothecin nanoparticle with Olaparib which is in the stage of clinical trial phase 1 on lung cancer patients. However, the exact results of their tests are not fully known yet [163]. Topotecan Hydrochloride or CD-based Polymer- Camptothecin CRLX101 is another CD derivative that was tested in the clinical trial for lung cancer treatment. However, this system was stopped in phase 2 due to a lack of drug delivery ability [164].

3.2.4 Mesoporous Silica Nanoparticle (MSN)

Silica-based materials are considered safe by the FDA, and subsequently, it has made silica-based nanoparticles one of the suitable groups of candidates for targeted drug delivery in cancer therapy [165]. MSNs are particles with uniform and adjustable pore size and high pore volume surfaces, as well as the potential for large-scale production. These features all increase the efficiency of drug encapsulation significantly [166].

There is a lot of flexibility in drug delivery system design using MSNs. For example, so far PH/redoxresponsive MSNs were designed to release chemotherapy drugs. Heat and ultrasound-responsive MSNs were studied. MRP-1 siRNA and myricetin can be loaded in MSN nanoparticles and also can be modified with folic acid to target lung cancer cells. In vivo tests showed that Myr-MRP-1/MSN-FA dramatically reduced the volume of lung tumors in the treated mice [167]. Although there are no FDA-Approved drug delivery systems based on MSNs for lung cancer treatment, research in this scope still is under process.

4. Social and economic effect of cancer treatment

strategies

Cancer, as one of the main causes of death and disease in the world, not only causes great losses to the health of patients and survivors, but also imposes a heavy financial impact on societies [168]. In 2018, 9.6 million people died of various types of cancer worldwide. WHO estimates that 1 in 6 deaths globally is due to cancer, with approximately 70% of cancer deaths occurring in low- and middle-income countries, adjusted for income [169]. Cancer patients in the United States paid \$5.6 billion out of pocket for cancer treatments in 2018 [168,169]. The national patient economic burden related to cancer care which was reported in 2019 in the United States, was \$21.09 billion, consisting of patient-paid costs, \$16.22 billion, and patient-time value costs, \$4.87 billion [168].

The economic burden of cancer is significant in all countries, reflecting costs for patients and countries' healthcare systems, as well as lost productivity in terms of morbidity and premature death from cancer[170]. According to a report published in October 2021 in the Journal of National Cancer Institute (JNCI), across all cancer sites, average annual net out-of-pocket costs for medical services in early stage and end-of-life care for patients initially diagnosed with the localized disease were less compared to the disease in more advanced stages. Moreover, according to this analysis, the overall costs of cancer care and lost productivity in the United States were far greater than those borne directly by patients [168].

Although economic data are available in some countries, the global economic burden of cancer is still unknown. In the United States in 2017, cancer healthcare costs were estimated at \$161.2 billion. Productivity loss in terms of tolls was US\$30.3 billion, and premature mortality, was \$150.7 billion; the economic burden of cancer in the United States was approximately 1.8% of the gross domestic product (GDP). In European Union, health care costs were 57.3 billion euros, and premature death were 10.6 billion euros and 47.9 billion euros, respectively, which increased to 141.8 billion euros with informal care costs, which is equivalent to 1.07% of the gross domestic product. The economic burden of lost

productivity due to complications and premature death from cancer accounts for nearly 60% of the total cancer-related economic burden in EU countries [170].

4.1. Ways to reduce the cost of cancer

As cancer treatment costs rise, prevention, screening, and early detection efforts have the potential to save money [170]. In 2019, national costs were highest for "cancers" of the breast (\$3.14 billion), prostate (\$2.26 billion), colorectal (\$1.46 billion), and lung (\$1.35 billion) which indicates a higher prevalence of these cancers [168]. In many cases, people use less cancer screening and may pay more for their cancer care. Therefore, prevention is the key to reducing payment costs, and access to the right screening tests at the right time is an effective step in this direction [168].

Economic analysis can be useful in minimizing costs and informing resource allocation decisions and investments in cancer control programs, including prevention, early detection, treatment, survival, and end-of-life care [168,170]. Approximately \$183 billion was spent in the United States on cancer-related health care in 2015, and this amount is projected to increase to \$246 billion by 2030. The reason for this 34% increase is aging and population growth [168,171].

Not all cancer patients experience these expenses and sufferings in the same manner, but some circumstances increase the likelihood that the patient may have financial difficulties. The numerous cancer types, the incidence of the illness, the patterns and length of therapy, and the cost of various forms of care for distinct cancer locations are all shown via cost difference analysis [168].

The most common cancers in terms of frequency and number of deaths are lung, breast, and colon [169]. Total U.S. national spending in 2019 for medical services and oral prescription drug spending was highest for the most common cancer sites. This figure was reported for women's breast cancer (\$26 billion), colorectal (\$21 billion), and lung (\$20 billion) [171]. Overall, national prescription drug costs are highest for women's breast (\$2.7 billion), leukemia (\$2.4 billion), lung (\$1.4 billion), and prostate (\$1.3 billion) cancers [171].

4.1.1 Lung cancer / costs / smoking

Lung cancer is the leading cause of cancer deaths in the world. Gender differences in the incidence and mortality rates for different types of lung cancer were identified. So, new research incorporating this variable will potentially lead to the development of new therapies to treat this devastating disease [172]. Estimated rates of lung cancer in the United States for 2021 suggest that of the 235,760 new cases, 119,100 will be in men and 116,660 in women which causes the death of 69,410 men and 62,470 women with lung cancer every year [172].

Respiratory diseases impose a heavy burden on society in terms of disability and premature mortality, as well as direct costs of health services, prescription drugs, and indirect costs related to lost productivity [168].

A study estimated these costs in 28 current EU member states using WHO and European data collections. According to the reports, the total cost of respiratory diseases in 28 EU countries alone is more than 380 billion euros annually, of which at least 55 billion euros are spent on direct costs of primary health care and hospitals. Among them, the average direct costs due to asthma are 33.9 billion euros, and for each case of tuberculosis, it is about 7,500 euros. As for multidrug resistant diseases (MDR-TB), this cost is 33,000 euros, and for highly drug-resistant diseases it rises to 47,500 euros [168].

In a study conducted in China in 2015, the total estimated smoking-attributable expenditure (SAE) for lung cancer was predicted at 5249 million dollars which is equivalent to 0.05% of the gross domestic product (GDP) of this country, of which 36.9% is related to direct costs and 63.1% is related to indirect costs. According to the results, it was evaluated that if there is a 20% reduction in smoking, the total SAE will decrease to 4.9% by 2030 [173].

Almost half of the economic burden of respiratory diseases is related to smoking [168,173]. Smoking is the number one risk factor for lung cancer as well as for other cancers [169,170]. The global cost of tobacco use is nearly \$2.05 trillion annually, which is roughly 2% of global economic output [170]. On average, 14.4% of men and 11.7% of women are daily tobacco users, so the lifetime risk of developing lung cancer disease is about 1 in 15 for men and 1 in 17 for women [172].

4.2. Pharmacoeconomics

Pharmacoeconomics is a discipline that evaluates the relationship among clinical, economic, and human outcomes to determine products and services that maximize value for every dollar spent [174]. This knowledge is considered to be a branch of health economics that identifies, measures, and compares the costs and consequences of drug therapy for healthcare systems and society, in addition to provide fundamental guidance on resource management [175-177]. The United States of America is currently moving in this direction, and the FDA is considering conducting studies in the field of pharmacoeconomics in addition to the standard studies on the safety and effectiveness of drugs as the importance of this approach in oncology is seen when policymakers use research findings to make practical decisions [174].

From the pharmacoeconomic point of view, developing new pharmaceutical materials and products, such as nanosystems, and their introduction pharmaceutical market can be far more to economically effective. In particular, the potential for side effects reduction plays an important role in treatments with new nano-based systems that lead to reduced medical procedures, and personnel costs, and allow patients to return to professional life by increasing the chance of recovery [178,179]. Regarding limited financial resources, health economics and pharmacoeconomics are becoming widely used criteria for decision-making in modern health care policies. Moreover, research in this area is evolving to meet the needs of the individual patient and decision-makers in a payer group, healthcare system, or community [174,180,181]. Therefore, the study of new therapeutic options, such as nanocarrier-based drug delivery systems characterized by high efficacy with limited side effects, remains a highly desirable goal [182].

4.3. Nanocarriers / benefits / costs

While surgery, radiation therapy, and drug therapy are the three most widely-used ways to treat cancer, the rising cost of drug treatment for cancer patients brought heavy healthcare costs in the United States to continue to rise faster than the consumer price index [168,174]. The National Cancer Institute (NCI) of America conducts its programs to reduce cancer prevalence and improve cancer patients' lives through research in the field of developing new interventions, including new methods of drug delivery. Novel nanobased systems can be therapeutic agents themselves or be served as a vehicle to carry various active pharmaceutical agents to specific parts of the body .The promising development of nanomedicines leads to improving therapeutic efficacy, reducing the effective therapeutic dose, and reducing the side effect risks. These advantages make nanotechnology much more economical than conventional treatments because it can be reflected in the pharmacoeconomic aspect as a reduction of costs related to medicine (disease, medical equipment, treatment monitoring) and non-medical methods [169].

The effectiveness of selected drugs in terms of their equivalents in nanocarriers can affect the reduction or minimization of costs in pharmacoeconomic analysis, especially to shorten the hospitalization time or reduce the number of tests performed. For instance, reducing the days of hospitalization of a patient leads to a decline in the infection risks and side effects of drugs, and improves the quality of treatment, by which finally the efficiency of bed management and hospital profits increase [183].

All advantages presented in the application of nanocarriers, which make nanotechnology-based therapies much cheaper than conventional treatment methods, can be reflected in the expected medicinal efficacy. This can cause an outstanding cost reduction in cancer patient management. In other words, the effective treatment allows patients to return to their professional life [169]. Up to now, 224 nanocarriers, such as DDS are designed to reduce the cost of drug administration, improve compliance, and help patients recover as quickly as possible [169]. Hence, among various nanocarriers, the lipid category has received the most FDA approval which indicates the high potential of this category for industrialization.

All these aspects are reflected in pharmacoeconomics to provide reliable information about the cost of treatment and choose the best treatment methodology based on its effectiveness at the lowest possible cost [169]. This branch of science can be certainly justified in decision-making processes while evaluating the cost-effectiveness and availability of the right nanomedicine for the patient at the right time, comparing alternative drugs from the same therapeutic class or similar drugs with a similar mechanism of action [169]. Using pharmaceutical nanocarriers is a unique opportunity to improve the economic attractiveness of known drugs since the development of new nanoformulations, especially using the nanocarriers based on lipids, micelles, and cyclodextrins are much cheaper and faster than the discovery of new drugs.

In general, in recent years, the increase in health care costs has been a worrying issue for most developed and even developing countries. To maximize economic returns, it is critical that governments gain a deeper understanding of cost-effectiveness the of nanomedicines. The first step in developing this market in the modern era of cancer research is a standardized cost-effectiveness study that demonstrates whether the benefits of nano drugs can be worth the extra cost compared to standard formulations [184,185].

5. Conclusion

Cancer, as a lethal threat to people's health, has been always an international issue. Lung cancer, in particular, is a serious problem with high mortality and morbidity among malignant tumors. It imposed a heavy burden of cost, either economic or social aspects on governments. Different methodologies were used to find a cure or at least an effective treatment to solve this challenging issue. In summary, valuable results of different research showed that nano drug delivery systems can improve the efficacies of chemotherapy for cancer therapeutic approaches and reduce the severe side effects. Moreover, considering the pharmacoeconomic aspect, taking advantage of nanocarriers for cancer therapy could reduce hospitalization time and cost. Although some drawbacks like drug leakage, drug resistance, instability, and inappropriate accumulation, still remained in nano-based drug delivery systems, recent studies presented the great potential of using nanocarriers with some modifications for cancer therapy. Lipids achieved the highest attention among various types of nano-based carriers for cancer treatment, and some of them succeeded to be known as FDA-Approved compounds. However, more efforts need to be accomplished and various complementary pieces of research need to be done to enhance the application and effectiveness of these nanocarriers. Targeted smart nano drug delivery systems need to be constructed in a way that results in having enough stability and acceptance in the industrial aspect as well to be used on a large scale.

6. References

- 1.A. Ramos, S. Sadeghi, H. Tabatabaeian, Battling chemoresistance in cancer: root causes and strategies to uproot them, International Journal of Molecular Sciences, 9451, 22 (2021).
- 2.X.-H. Chen, R. Chen, M.-Y. Shi, R.-F. Tian, H. Zhang, Z.-Q. Xin, Z.-N. Chen, K. Wang, Chimeric antigen receptor T cells targeting CD147 for non-small cell lung cancer therapy, Translational oncology, 101309, 16 (2022).
- 3.M. Rizwanullah, M.Z. Ahmad, A. Garg, J. Ahmad, Advancement in design of nanostructured lipid carriers for cancer targeting and theranostic application, Biochimica et Biophysica Acta (BBA)-General Subjects, 129936, 1865 (2021).
- 4.V.K. Chaturvedi, A. Singh, V.K. Singh, M.P. Singh, Cancer nanotechnology: a new revolution for cancer diagnosis and therapy, Current drug metabolism, 416-429, 20 (2019).
- 5.L. Xiang, Y. Gao, S. Chen, J. Sun, J. Wu, X. Meng, Therapeutic potential of Scutellaria baicalensis Georgi in lung cancer therapy, Phytomedicine, 153727, 95 (2022).
- 6.Z. Li, S. Tan, S. Li, Q. Shen, K. Wang, Cancer drug delivery in the nano era: An overview and perspectives, Oncology reports, 611-624, 38 (2017).
- 7.M.W. Kim, S.-H. Kwon, J.H. Choi, A. Lee, A promising biocompatible platform: lipid-based and bio-inspired smart drug delivery systems for cancer therapy, International journal of molecular sciences, 3859, 19 (2018).
- 8.E. Pérez-Herrero, A. Fernández-Medarde, Advanced targeted therapies in cancer: Drug nanocarriers, the future of chemotherapy, European journal of pharmaceutics and biopharmaceutics, 52-79, 93 (2015).
- 9.N. Doshi, S. Mitragotri, Designer biomaterials for nanomedicine, Advanced functional materials, 3843-3854, 19 (2009).
- 10.S. Bajpai, S.K. Tiwary, M. Sonker, A. Joshi, V. Gupta, Y. Kumar, N. Shreyash, S. Biswas, Recent advances in nanoparticle-based cancer treatment: a review, ACS Applied Nano Materials, 6441-6470, 4 (2021).
- 11.Z. Wang, J. Chen, N. Little, J. Lu, Self-assembling prodrug nanotherapeutics for synergistic tumor targeted drug delivery, Acta biomaterialia, 20-28, 111 (2020).
- 12.P. Freres, G. Jerusalem, M. Moonen, Chapter 2 -Categories of Anticancer Treatments, in: P. Lancellotti, J.L. Zamorano Gómez, M. Galderisi (Eds.)

Anti-Cancer Treatments and Cardiotoxicity, Academic Press, Boston, 2017, pp. 7-11.

- 13.D. Karati, K.R. Mahadik, P. Trivedi, D. Kumar, Alkylating Agents, the Road Less Traversed, Changing Anticancer Therapy, Anticancer Agents Med Chem, 1478-1495, 22 (2022).
- 14.LiverTox: Clinical and Research Information on Drug-Induced Liver Injury [Internet]. Bethesda (MD): National Institute of Diabetes and Digestive and Kidney Diseases; 2012-. Alkylating Agents. [Updated 2015 Mar 10]. Available from: https://www.ncbi.nlm.nih.gov/books/NBK547849/,
- 15.K.-W. Kim, J.K. Roh, H.-J. Wee, C. Kim, Alkylating Anticancer Drugs, Cancer Drug Discovery, Springer2016, pp. 71-94.
- 16.H. Lajous, B. Lelièvre, E. Vauléon, P. Lecomte, E. Garcion, Rethinking alkylating (-like) agents for solid tumor management, Trends in pharmacological sciences, 342-357, 40 (2019).
- 17.M.F. Braña, M. Cacho, A. Gradillas, B. de Pascual-Teresa, A. Ramos, Intercalators as anticancer drugs, Curr Pharm Des, 1745-1780, 7 (2001).
- C.L. Shapiro, A. Recht, Side effects of adjuvant treatment of breast cancer, N Engl J Med, 1997-2008, 344 (2001).
- 19.A.K. Nowak, B.W. Robinson, R.A. Lake, Synergy between chemotherapy and immunotherapy in the treatment of established murine solid tumors, Cancer Res, 4490-4496, 63 (2003).
- 20.J. Zhou, Y. Kang, L. Chen, H. Wang, J. Liu, S. Zeng, L. Yu, The Drug-Resistance Mechanisms of Five Platinum-Based Antitumor Agents, Front Pharmacol, 343, 11 (2020).
- 21.L. Paz-Ares, A. Luft, D. Vicente, A. Tafreshi, M. Gümüş, J. Mazières, B. Hermes, F. Çay Şenler, T. Csőszi, A. Fülöp, J. Rodríguez-Cid, J. Wilson, S. Sugawara, T. Kato, K.H. Lee, Y. Cheng, S. Novello, B. Halmos, X. Li, G.M. Lubiniecki, B. Piperdi, D.M. Kowalski, Pembrolizumab plus Chemotherapy for Squamous Non-Small-Cell Lung Cancer, N Engl J Med, 2040-2051, 379 (2018).
- 22.S. Gadgeel, D. Rodríguez-Abreu, G. Speranza, E. Esteban, E. Felip, M. Dómine, R. Hui, M.J. Hochmair, P. Clingan, S.F. Powell, S.Y. Cheng, H.G. Bischoff, N. Peled, F. Grossi, R.R. Jennens, M. Reck, E.B. Garon, S. Novello, B. Rubio-Viqueira, M. Boyer, T. Kurata, J.E. Gray, J. Yang, T. Bas, M.C. Pietanza, M.C. Garassino, Updated Analysis From KEYNOTE-189: Pembrolizumab or Placebo Plus Pemetrexed and Platinum for Previously Untreated Metastatic Nonsquamous Non-Small-Cell Lung Cancer, J Clin Oncol, 1505-1517, 38 (2020).
- 23.K.W. Wyman, I. Puzanov, K.R. Hande, Antimetabolites, Drugs Affecting Growth of Tumours, Springer2006, pp. 1-18.

- 24.H. Tian, B.N. Cronstein, Understanding the mechanisms of action of methotrexate, Bull NYU Hosp Jt Dis, 168-173, 65 (2007).
- 25.S.P. Ackland, R.L. Schilsky, High-dose methotrexate: a critical reappraisal, Journal of Clinical Oncology, 2017-2031, 5 (1987).
- 26.S. Noble, K.L. Goa, Gemcitabine, Drugs, 447-472, 54 (1997).
- 27.C. Manegold, Gemcitabine (Gemzar®) in non-small cell lung cancer, Expert review of anticancer therapy, 345-360, 4 (2004).
- 28.J.M. Reid, W. Qu, S.L. Safgren, M.M. Ames, M.D. Krailo, N.L. Seibel, J. Kuttesch, J. Holcenberg, Phase I trial and pharmacokinetics of gemcitabine in children with advanced solid tumors, Journal of clinical oncology, 2445-2451, 22 (2004).
- 29.E. Moysan, G. Bastiat, J.-P. Benoit, Gemcitabine versus modified gemcitabine: a review of several promising chemical modifications, Molecular pharmaceutics, 430-444, 10 (2013).
- 30.C. Shih, V.J. Chen, L.S. Gossett, S.B. Gates, W.C. MacKellar, L.L. Habeck, K.A. Shackelford, L.G. Mendelsohn, D.J. Soose, V.F. Patel, LY231514, a pyrrolo [2, 3-d] pyrimidine-based antifolate that inhibits multiple folate-requiring enzymes, Cancer research, 1116-1123, 57 (1997).
- 31.S. Chattopadhyay, R.G. Moran, I.D. Goldman, Pemetrexed: biochemical and cellular pharmacology, mechanisms, and clinical applications, Molecular cancer therapeutics, 404-417, 6 (2007).
- 32.A.C. Racanelli, S.B. Rothbart, C.L. Heyer, R.G. Moran, Therapeutics by cytotoxic metabolite accumulation: pemetrexed causes ZMP accumulation, AMPK activation, and mammalian target of rapamycin inhibition, Cancer research, 5467-5474, 69 (2009).
- 33.L. Righi, M.G. Papotti, P. Ceppi, A. Billè, E. Bacillo, L. Molinaro, E. Ruffini, G.V. Scagliotti, G. Selvaggi, Thymidylate synthase but not excision repair crosscomplementation group 1 tumor expression predicts outcome in patients with malignant pleural mesothelioma treated with pemetrexed-based chemotherapy, Journal of clinical oncology, 1534-1539, 28 (2010).
- 34.R. Tanino, Y. Tsubata, N. Harashima, M. Harada, T. Isobe, Novel drug-resistance mechanisms of pemetrexed-treated non-small cell lung cancer, Oncotarget, 16807, 9 (2018).
- 35.K.C. Arbour, G.J. Riely, Systemic Therapy for Locally Advanced and Metastatic Non-Small Cell Lung Cancer: A Review, Jama, 764-774, 322 (2019).
- 36.T.A. Yap, E.E. Parkes, W. Peng, J.T. Moyers, M.A. Curran, H.A. Tawbi, Development of Immunotherapy Combination Strategies in Cancer, Cancer Discov, 1368-1397, 11 (2021).

- 37.J.L. Nitiss, Investigating the biological functions of DNA topoisomerases in eukaryotic cells, Biochimica et Biophysica Acta (BBA)-Gene Structure and Expression, 63-81, 1400 (1998).
- 38.K. Hevener, T.A. Verstak, K.E. Lutat, D.L. Riggsbee, J.W. Mooney, Recent developments in topoisomerasetargeted cancer chemotherapy, Acta pharmaceutica sinica B, 844-861, 8 (2018).
- 39.P. Ughachukwu, P. Unekwe, Efflux Pump. Mediated Resistance in Chemotherapy, Annals of medical and health sciences research, 191-198, 2 (2012).
- 40.S. Bansal, P. Bajaj, S. Pandey, V. Tandon, Topoisomerases: resistance versus sensitivity, how far we can go?, Medicinal research reviews, 404-438, 37 (2017).
- 41.S. Castelli, M.B. Goncalves, P. Katkar, G.C. Stuchi, R.A.A. Couto, H.M. Petrilli, A.M. da Costa Ferreira, Comparative studies of oxindolimine-metal complexes as inhibitors of human DNA topoisomerase IB, Journal of Inorganic Biochemistry, 85-94, 186 (2018).
- 42.A. Dehshahri, M. Ashrafizadeh, E.G. Afshar, A. Pardakhty, A. Mandegary, R. Mohammadinejad, G. Sethi, Topoisomerase inhibitors: Pharmacology and emerging nanoscale delivery systems, Pharmacological Research, 104551, 151 (2020).
- 43.A. Mollica, A. Stefanucci, F. Feliciani, I. Cacciatore, C. Cornacchia, F. Pinnen, Delivery methods of camptothecin and its hydrosoluble analogue irinotecan for treatment of colorectal cancer, Current Drug Delivery, 122-131, 9 (2012).
- 44.T. Feng, Y. Zhao, Clinical anticancer drugs for cancer treatment, Nanomaterial-Based Drug Delivery Carriers for Cancer Therapy, Springer2017, pp. 7-13.
- 45.A.L. Demain, Importance of microbial natural products and the need to revitalize their discovery, Journal of Industrial Microbiology and Biotechnology, 185-201, 41 (2014).
- 46.S. Saeidnia, Anticancer antibiotics, New Approaches to Natural Anticancer Drugs, Springer2015, pp. 51-66.
- 47.J. Fahy, Modifications in the upper or velbenamine part of the vinca alkaloids have major implications for tubulin interacting activities, Current pharmaceutical design, 1181-1197, 7 (2001).
- 48.S.M. Howard, A. Theologides, J. Sheppard, Comparative effects of vindesine, vinblastine, and vincristine on mitotic arrest and hormonal response of L1210 leukemia cells, Cancer Research, 2695-2700, 40 (1980).
- 49.N. Normanno, A. De Luca, C. Bianco, L. Strizzi, M. Mancino, M. Maiello, A. Carotenuto, G. De Feo, F. Caponigro, D. Salomon, Epidermal growth factor receptor (EGFR) signaling in cancer. Gene, Press, Corrected Proof, (2006).
- 50.C. Pottier, M. Fresnais, M. Gilon, G. Jérusalem, R. Longuespée, N.E. Sounni, Tyrosine kinase inhibitors

in cancer: breakthrough and challenges of targeted therapy, Cancers, 731, 12 (2020).

- 51.M.K. Paul, A.K. Mukhopadhyay, Tyrosine kinase–role and significance in cancer, International journal of medical sciences, 101, 1 (2004).
- 52.R. Roskoski Jr, Cyclin-dependent protein serine/threonine kinase inhibitors as anticancer drugs, Pharmacological research, 471-488, 139 (2019).
- 53.M. Krug, A. Hilgeroth, Recent advances in the development of multi-kinase inhibitors, Mini reviews in medicinal chemistry, 1312-1327, 8 (2008).
- 54.J.C. Soria, Y. Ohe, J. Vansteenkiste, T. Reungwetwattana, B. Chewaskulyong, K.H. Lee, A. Dechaphunkul, F. Imamura, N. Nogami, T. Kurata, I. Okamoto, C. Zhou, B.C. Cho, Y. Cheng, E.K. Cho, P.J. Voon, D. Planchard, W.C. Su, J.E. Gray, S.M. Lee, R. Hodge, M. Marotti, Y. Rukazenkov, S.S. Ramalingam, Osimertinib in Untreated EGFR-Mutated Advanced Non-Small-Cell Lung Cancer, N Engl J Med, 113-125, 378 (2018).
- 55.A.T. Shaw, S.H. Ou, Y.J. Bang, D.R. Camidge, B.J. Solomon, R. Salgia, G.J. Riely, M. Varella-Garcia, G.I. Shapiro, D.B. Costa, R.C. Doebele, L.P. Le, Z. Zheng, W. Tan, P. Stephenson, S.M. Shreeve, L.M. Tye, J.G. Christensen, K.D. Wilner, J.W. Clark, A.J. Iafrate, Crizotinib in ROS1-rearranged non-small-cell lung cancer, N Engl J Med, 1963-1971, 371 (2014).
- 56.D. Planchard, B. Besse, H.J.M. Groen, P.J. Souquet, E. Quoix, C.S. Baik, F. Barlesi, T.M. Kim, J. Mazieres, S. Novello, J.R. Rigas, A. Upalawanna, A.M. D'Amelio, Jr., P. Zhang, B. Mookerjee, B.E. Johnson, Dabrafenib plus trametinib in patients with previously treated BRAF(V600E)-mutant metastatic non-small cell lung cancer: an open-label, multicentre phase 2 trial, Lancet Oncol, 984-993, 17 (2016).
- 57.S. Peters, D.R. Camidge, A.T. Shaw, S. Gadgeel, J.S. Ahn, D.W. Kim, S.I. Ou, M. Pérol, R. Dziadziuszko, R. Rosell, A. Zeaiter, E. Mitry, S. Golding, B. Balas, J. Noe, P.N. Morcos, T. Mok, Alectinib versus Crizotinib in Untreated ALK-Positive Non-Small-Cell Lung Cancer, N Engl J Med, 829-838, 377 (2017).
- 58.A.F. Gazdar, Activating and resistance mutations of EGFR in non-small-cell lung cancer: role in clinical response to EGFR tyrosine kinase inhibitors, Oncogene, S24-31, 28 Suppl 1 (2009).
- 59.K. Otsuka, A. Hata, J. Takeshita, C. Okuda, R. Kaji, K. Masago, S. Fujita, N. Katakami, EGFR-TKI rechallenge with bevacizumab in EGFR-mutant nonsmall cell lung cancer, Cancer Chemother Pharmacol, 835-841, 76 (2015).
- 60.G.R. Oxnard, M.E. Arcila, C.S. Sima, G.J. Riely, J. Chmielecki, M.G. Kris, W. Pao, M. Ladanyi, V.A. Miller, Acquired resistance to EGFR tyrosine kinase inhibitors in EGFR-mutant lung cancer: distinct natural history of patients with tumors harboring the

T790M mutation, Clin Cancer Res, 1616-1622, 17 (2011).

- 61.H.A. Yu, M.E. Arcila, N. Rekhtman, C.S. Sima, M.F. Zakowski, W. Pao, M.G. Kris, V.A. Miller, M. Ladanyi, G.J. Riely, Analysis of tumor specimens at the time of acquired resistance to EGFR-TKI therapy in 155 patients with EGFR-mutant lung cancers, Clin Cancer Res, 2240-2247, 19 (2013).
- 62.J.R. Sierra, V. Cepero, S. Giordano, Molecular mechanisms of acquired resistance to tyrosine kinase targeted therapy, Mol Cancer, 75, 9 (2010).
- 63.H.A. Yu, C.S. Sima, J. Huang, S.B. Solomon, A. Rimner, P. Paik, M.C. Pietanza, C.G. Azzoli, N.A. Rizvi, L.M. Krug, V.A. Miller, M.G. Kris, G.J. Riely, Local therapy with continued EGFR tyrosine kinase inhibitor therapy as a treatment strategy in EGFR-mutant advanced lung cancers that have developed acquired resistance to EGFR tyrosine kinase inhibitors, J Thorac Oncol, 346-351, 8 (2013).
- 64.A.N. Hata, M.J. Niederst, H.L. Archibald, M. Gomez-Caraballo, F.M. Siddiqui, H.E. Mulvey, Y.E. Maruvka, F. Ji, H.E. Bhang, V. Krishnamurthy Radhakrishna, G. Siravegna, H. Hu, S. Raoof, E. Lockerman, A. Kalsy, D. Lee, C.L. Keating, D.A. Ruddy, L.J. Damon, A.S. Crystal, C. Costa, Z. Piotrowska, A. Bardelli, A.J. Iafrate, R.I. Sadreyev, F. Stegmeier, G. Getz, L.V. Sequist, A.C. Faber, J.A. Engelman, Tumor cells can follow distinct evolutionary paths to become resistant to epidermal growth factor receptor inhibition, Nat Med, 262-269, 22 (2016).
- 65.J. Tabernero, The role of VEGF and EGFR inhibition: implications for combining anti–VEGF and anti– EGFR agents, Molecular cancer research, 203-220, 5 (2007).
- 66.C. Masuda, M. Yanagisawa, K. Yorozu, M. Kurasawa, K. Furugaki, N. Ishikura, T. Iwai, M. Sugimoto, K. Yamamoto, Bevacizumab counteracts VEGFdependent resistance to erlotinib in an EGFR-mutated NSCLC xenograft model, International journal of oncology, 425-434, 51 (2017).
- 67.G.N. Naumov, M.B. Nilsson, T. Cascone, A. Briggs, O. Straume, L.A. Akslen, E. Lifshits, L.A. Byers, L. Xu, H.-k. Wu, Combined vascular endothelial growth factor receptor and epidermal growth factor receptor (EGFR) blockade inhibits tumor growth in xenograft models of EGFR inhibitor resistance, Clinical Cancer Research, 3484-3494, 15 (2009).
- 68.Q. Chu, S. Huang, Y. Gao, J. Lin, Y. Chen, B. Zhu, K. Wu, Abstract 1874: Anti-VEGF therapy sensitizes EGFR/MET co-altered NSCLC cells to TKIs via inhibiting the VEGF/ERK/MET pathway, Cancer Research, 1874-1874, 80 (2020).
- 69.R.S. Herbst, R. Ansari, F. Bustin, P. Flynn, L. Hart, G.A. Otterson, G. Vlahovic, C.-H. Soh, P. O'Connor,

J. Hainsworth, Efficacy of bevacizumab plus erlotinib versus erlotinib alone in advanced non-small-cell lung cancer after failure of standard first-line chemotherapy (BeTa): a double-blind, placebo-controlled, phase 3 trial, The Lancet, 1846-1854, 377 (2011).

- 70.B.E. Johnson, F. Kabbinavar, L. Fehrenbacher, J. Hainsworth, S. Kasubhai, B. Kressel, C.-Y. Lin, T. Marsland, T. Patel, J. Polikoff, ATLAS: randomized, double-blind, placebo-controlled, phase IIIB trial comparing bevacizumab therapy with or without erlotinib, after completion of chemotherapy, with bevacizumab for first-line treatment of advanced non-small-cell lung cancer, Journal of Clinical Oncology, 3926-3934, 31 (2013).
- 71.T. Seto, T. Kato, M. Nishio, K. Goto, S. Atagi, Y. Hosomi, N. Yamamoto, T. Hida, M. Maemondo, K. Nakagawa, Erlotinib alone or with bevacizumab as first-line therapy in patients with advanced nonsquamous non-small-cell lung cancer harbouring EGFR mutations (JO25567): an open-label, randomised, multicentre, phase 2 study, The lancet oncology, 1236-1244, 15 (2014).
- 72.T. Kato, T. Seto, M. Nishio, K. Goto, N. Yamamoto, I. Okamoto, L. Tao, W. Yu, T. Khaznadar, K. Tajima, Erlotinib plus bevacizumab phase ll study in patients with advanced non-small-cell lung cancer (JO25567): updated safety results, Drug safety, 229-237, 41 (2018).
- 73.Q. Zhou, Y.-L. Wu, Y. Cheng, Y. Liu, G. Chen, J. Cui, N. Yang, Y. Song, X.-L. Li, S. Lu, CTONG 1509: phase III study of bevacizumab with or without erlotinib in untreated Chinese patients with advanced EGFR-mutated NSCLC, Annals of Oncology, v603, 30 (2019).
- 74.M. Maemondo, T. Fukuhara, H. Saito, N. Furuya, K. Watanabe, S. Sugawara, S. Iwasawa, Y. Tsunezuka, O. Yamaguchi, M. Okada, NEJ026: Final overall survival analysis of bevacizumab plus erlotinib treatment for NSCLC patients harboring activating EGFRmutations, American Society of Clinical Oncology, 2020.
- 75.H. Saito, T. Fukuhara, N. Furuya, K. Watanabe, S. Sugawara, S. Iwasawa, Y. Tsunezuka, O. Yamaguchi, M. Okada, K. Yoshimori, Erlotinib plus bevacizumab versus erlotinib alone in patients with EGFR-positive advanced non-squamous non-small-cell lung cancer (NEJ026): interim analysis of an open-label, randomised, multicentre, phase 3 trial, The Lancet Oncology, 625-635, 20 (2019).
- 76.F. Ciardiello, G. Tortora, EGFR antagonists in cancer treatment, New England Journal of Medicine, 1160-1174, 358 (2008).
- 77.R.J. Oliveira-Silva, A. Carolina de Carvalho, L. de Souza Viana, A.L. Carvalho, R.M. Reis, Anti-EGFR Therapy: Strategies in Head and Neck Squamous Cell

Carcinoma, Recent Pat Anticancer Drug Discov, 170-183, 11 (2016).

- 78.S.C. Azoury, R.C. Gilmore, V. Shukla, Molecularly targeted agents and immunotherapy for the treatment of head and neck squamous cell cancer (HNSCC), Discov Med, 507-516, 21 (2016).
- 79.I.N.F. Gomes, R.J. da Silva-Oliveira, L.S. da Silva, O. Martinho, A.F. Evangelista, A. van Helvoort Lengert, L.F. Leal, V.A.O. Silva, S.P. Dos Santos, F.C. Nascimento, A. Lopes Carvalho, R.M. Reis, Comprehensive Molecular Landscape of Cetuximab Resistance in Head and Neck Cancer Cell Lines, Cells, 11 (2022).
- 80.M. Iida, T.M. Brand, M.M. Starr, E.J. Huppert, N. Luthar, H. Bahrar, J.P. Coan, H.E. Pearson, R. Salgia, D.L. Wheeler, Overcoming acquired resistance to cetuximab by dual targeting HER family receptors with antibody-based therapy, Mol Cancer, 242, 13 (2014).
- 81.V. Bayer, An overview of monoclonal antibodies, Seminars in oncology nursing, Elsevier, 2019, pp. 150927.
- 82.L. Horn, M. Reck, D.R. Spigel, The future of immunotherapy in the treatment of small cell lung cancer, The Oncologist, 910-921, 21 (2016).
- 83.D.R. Spigel, P.M. Townley, D.M. Waterhouse, L. Fang, I. Adiguzel, J.E. Huang, D.A. Karlin, L. Faoro, F.A. Scappaticci, M.A. Socinski, Randomized phase II study of bevacizumab in combination with chemotherapy in previously untreated extensive-stage small-cell lung cancer: results from the SALUTE trial, Journal of clinical oncology, 2215-2222, 29 (2011).
- 84.A. Karlitepe, O. Ozalp, C.B. Avci, New approaches for cancer immunotherapy, Tumour Biol, 4075-4078, 36 (2015).
- 85.M.A. Socinski, R.M. Jotte, F. Cappuzzo, F. Orlandi, D. Stroyakovskiy, N. Nogami, D. Rodríguez-Abreu, D. Moro-Sibilot, C.A. Thomas, F. Barlesi, G. Finley, C. Kelsch, A. Lee, S. Coleman, Y. Deng, Y. Shen, M. Kowanetz, A. Lopez-Chavez, A. Sandler, M. Reck, Atezolizumab for First-Line Treatment of Metastatic Nonsquamous NSCLC, N Engl J Med, 2288-2301, 378 (2018).
- 86.V.K. Chaturvedi, A. Singh, V.K. Singh, M.P. Singh, Cancer Nanotechnology: A New Revolution for Cancer Diagnosis and Therapy, Curr Drug Metab, 416-429, 20 (2019).
- 87.Y. Dang, J. Guan, Nanoparticle-based drug delivery systems for cancer therapy, Smart Materials in Medicine, 10-19, 1 (2020).
- 88.Y. Xu, H. Wu, J. Huang, W. Qian, D.E. Martinson, B. Ji, Y. Li, Y.A. Wang, L. Yang, H. Mao, Probing and Enhancing Ligand-Mediated Active Targeting of Tumors Using Sub-5 nm Ultrafine Iron Oxide Nanoparticles, Theranostics, 2479-2494, 10 (2020).

- 89.Y. Xin, M. Yin, L. Zhao, F. Meng, L. Luo, Recent progress on nanoparticle-based drug delivery systems for cancer therapy, Cancer Biol Med, 228-241, 14 (2017).
- 90.Y. Matsumura, H. Maeda, A new concept for macromolecular therapeutics in cancer chemotherapy: mechanism of tumoritropic accumulation of proteins and the antitumor agent smancs, Cancer Res, 6387-6392, 46 (1986).
- 91.H. Maeda, Y. Matsumura, Tumoritropic and lymphotropic principles of macromolecular drugs, Crit Rev Ther Drug Carrier Syst, 193-210, 6 (1989).
- 92.H. Kang, S. Rho, W.R. Stiles, S. Hu, Y. Baek, D.W. Hwang, S. Kashiwagi, M.S. Kim, H.S. Choi, Size-Dependent EPR Effect of Polymeric Nanoparticles on Tumor Targeting, Adv Healthc Mater, e1901223, 9 (2020).
- 93.M.K. Riaz, M.A. Riaz, X. Zhang, C. Lin, K.H. Wong, X. Chen, G. Zhang, A. Lu, Z. Yang, Surface Functionalization and Targeting Strategies of Liposomes in Solid Tumor Therapy: A Review, Int J Mol Sci, 19 (2018).
- 94.R. Bazak, M. Houri, S.E. Achy, W. Hussein, T. Refaat, Passive targeting of nanoparticles to cancer: A comprehensive review of the literature, Mol Clin Oncol, 904-908, 2 (2014).
- 95.H.S. El-Sawy, A.M. Al-Abd, T.A. Ahmed, K.M. El-Say, V.P. Torchilin, Stimuli-Responsive Nano-Architecture Drug-Delivery Systems to Solid Tumor Micromilieu: Past, Present, and Future Perspectives, ACS Nano, 10636-10664, 12 (2018).
- 96.N. Muhamad, T. Plengsuriyakarn, K. Na-Bangchang, Application of active targeting nanoparticle delivery system for chemotherapeutic drugs and traditional/herbal medicines in cancer therapy: a systematic review, Int J Nanomedicine, 3921-3935, 13 (2018).
- 97.S. Hossen, M.K. Hossain, M. Basher, M. Mia, M. Rahman, M.J. Uddin, Smart nanocarrier-based drug delivery systems for cancer therapy and toxicity studies: A review, Journal of advanced research, 1-18, 15 (2019).
- 98.K. Atobe, T. Ishida, E. Ishida, K. Hashimoto, H. Kobayashi, J. Yasuda, T. Aoki, K. Obata, H. Kikuchi, H. Akita, T. Asai, H. Harashima, N. Oku, H. Kiwada, In vitro efficacy of a sterically stabilized immunoliposomes targeted to membrane type 1 matrix metalloproteinase (MT1-MMP), Biol Pharm Bull, 972-978, 30 (2007).
- 99.Y. Shi, R. van der Meel, X. Chen, T. Lammers, The EPR effect and beyond: Strategies to improve tumor targeting and cancer nanomedicine treatment efficacy, Theranostics, 7921-7924, 10 (2020).
- 100.S. Yu, X. Bi, L. Yang, S. Wu, Y. Yu, B. Jiang, A. Zhang, K. Lan, S. Duan, Co-Delivery of Paclitaxel and

PLK1-Targeted siRNA Using Aptamer-Functionalized Cationic Liposome for Synergistic Anti-Breast Cancer Effects In Vivo, J Biomed Nanotechnol, 1135-1148, 15 (2019).

- 101.Z. Jafaria, S. Honarmanda, F. Rahimia, A. Akbaria, S. Akbari, Mesoporous Silica Nanoparticles as Versatile carrier platforms in therapeutic applications, NanoScience Technology, 40-62, (2021).
- 102.A. Akbari, F. Rahimi, Z.A. Radmoghaddama, S. Honarmand, T. Godarya, M.G. Toudeshkchouei, S. Akbari, β-Cyclodextrins-based nano carriers for cancer therapy, NanoScience Technology, 1-11, (2021).
- 103. Z. Abbasi Radmoghaddam,S. Honarmand, M. Dastjerdi, S. Akbari, A. Akbari, Lipid-based nanoformulations for TKIs delivery in cancer therapy, NanoScience Technology, 11-27, 3 (2022).
- 104.U. Bulbake, S. Doppalapudi, N. Kommineni, W. Khan, Liposomal Formulations in Clinical Use: An Updated Review, Pharmaceutics, 9 (2017).
- 105.K.M. Hosny, O.A. Ahmed, R.T. Al-Abdali, Entericcoated alendronate sodium nanoliposomes: a novel formula to overcome barriers for the treatment of osteoporosis, Expert Opin Drug Deliv, 741-746, 10 (2013).
- 106.G. Bozzuto, A. Molinari, Liposomes as nanomedical devices, Int J Nanomedicine, 975-999, 10 (2015).
- 107.M. Alavi, N. Karimi, M. Safaei, Application of Various Types of Liposomes in Drug Delivery Systems, Adv Pharm Bull, 3-9, 7 (2017).
- 108.K. Dua, V.K. Rapalli, S.D. Shukla, G. Singhvi, M.D. Shastri, D.K. Chellappan, S. Satija, M. Mehta, M. Gulati, T.J.A. Pinto, G. Gupta, P.M. Hansbro, Multidrug resistant Mycobacterium tuberculosis & oxidative stress complexity: Emerging need for novel drug delivery approaches, Biomed Pharmacother, 1218-1229, 107 (2018).
- 109.H. Xing, K. Hwang, Y. Lu, Recent Developments of Liposomes as Nanocarriers for Theranostic Applications, Theranostics, 1336-1352, 6 (2016).
- 110.H. He, Y. Lu, J. Qi, Q. Zhu, Z. Chen, W. Wu, Adapting liposomes for oral drug delivery, Acta Pharm Sin B, 36-48, 9 (2019).
- 111.L. Sercombe, T. Veerati, F. Moheimani, S.Y. Wu, A.K. Sood, S. Hua, Advances and Challenges of Liposome Assisted Drug Delivery, Front Pharmacol, 286, 6 (2015).
- 112.H.Y. Lee, K.A. Mohammed, N. Nasreen, Nanoparticle-based targeted gene therapy for lung cancer, Am J Cancer Res, 1118-1134, 6 (2016).
- 113.D. Lombardo, M.A. Kiselev, M.T. Caccamo, Smart nanoparticles for drug delivery application: development of versatile nanocarrier platforms in biotechnology and nanomedicine, Journal of Nanomaterials, 2019 (2019).

- 114.G. Pillai, M.L. Ceballos-Coronel, Science and technology of the emerging nanomedicines in cancer therapy: A primer for physicians and pharmacists, SAGE Open Med, 2050312113513759, 1 (2013).
- 115.R.-L. Hong, Liposomal Anti-Cancer Drug Researches-The Myth of Long Circulation, 中華民國 癌症醫學會雜誌, 10-21, 20 (2004).
- 116.J.W. Park, Liposome-based drug delivery in breast cancer treatment, Breast Cancer Res, 95-99, 4 (2002).
- 117.K. Mross, B. Niemann, U. Massing, J. Drevs, C. Unger, R. Bhamra, C.E. Swenson, Pharmacokinetics of liposomal doxorubicin (TLC-D99; Myocet) in patients with solid tumors: an open-label, single-dose study, Cancer Chemother Pharmacol, 514-524, 54 (2004).
- 118.M. MacKenzie, H. Hirte, L. Siu, K. Gelmon, M. Ptaszynski, B. Fisher, E. Eisenhauer, A phase I study of OSI-211 and cisplatin as intravenous infusions given on days 1, 2 and 3 every 3 weeks in patients with solid cancers, Annals of oncology, 665-670, 15 (2004).
- 119.M. Norouzi, P. Hardy, Clinical applications of nanomedicines in lung cancer treatment, Acta Biomaterialia, 134-142, 121 (2021).
- 120.T. Boulikas, Clinical overview on Lipoplatin[™]: a successful liposomal formulation of cisplatin, Expert opinion on investigational drugs, 1197-1218, 18 (2009).
- 121.T. Boulikas, G.P. Stathopoulos, N. Volakakis, M. Vougiouka, Systemic Lipoplatin infusion results in preferential tumor uptake in human studies, Anticancer Research, 3031-3039, 25 (2005).
- 122.J.A. Zhang, G. Anyarambhatla, L. Ma, S. Ugwu, T. Xuan, T. Sardone, I. Ahmad, Development and characterization of a novel Cremophor® EL free liposome-based paclitaxel (LEP-ETU) formulation, European journal of pharmaceutics and biopharmaceutics, 177-187, 59 (2005).
- 123.M. Zhang, M. Li, L. Du, J. Zeng, T. Yao, Y. Jin, Paclitaxel-in-liposome-in-bacteria for inhalation treatment of primary lung cancer, International Journal of Pharmaceutics, 119177, 578 (2020).
- 124.Y.-L. Wu, K. Park, R.A. Soo, Y. Sun, K. Tyroller, D. Wages, G. Ely, J.C.-H. Yang, T. Mok, INSPIRE: a phase III study of the BLP25 liposome vaccine (L-BLP25) in Asian patients with unresectable stage III non-small cell lung cancer, BMC cancer, 1-7, 11 (2011).
- 125.M. Heydari, A. Gholoobi, G. Ranjbar, N. Rahbar, S.B.T. Sany, M.G. Mobarhan, G.A. Ferns, M. Rezayi, Aptamers as potential recognition elements for detection of vitamins and minerals: a systematic and critical review, Crit Rev Clin Lab Sci, 126-144, 57 (2020).

- 126.J. Ma, H. Zhuang, Z. Zhuang, Y. Lu, R. Xia, L. Gan, Y. Wu, Development of docetaxel liposome surface modified with CD133 aptamers for lung cancer targeting, Artif Cells Nanomed Biotechnol, 1864-1871, 46 (2018).
- 127.C. Lin, B.C.K. Wong, H. Chen, Z. Bian, G. Zhang, X. Zhang, M. Kashif Riaz, D. Tyagi, G. Lin, Y. Zhang, Pulmonary delivery of triptolide-loaded liposomes decorated with anti-carbonic anhydrase IX antibody for lung cancer therapy, Scientific reports, 1-12, 7 (2017).
- 128.V.S. Kulkarni, C. Shaw, Essential chemistry for formulators of semisolid and liquid dosages, Academic Press2015.
- 129.S. Kim, Y. Shi, J.Y. Kim, K. Park, J.-X. Cheng, Overcoming the barriers in micellar drug delivery: loading efficiency, in vivo stability, and micelle–cell interaction, Expert opinion on drug delivery, 49-62, 7 (2010).
- 130.Y. Lu, Z. Yue, J. Xie, W. Wang, H. Zhu, E. Zhang, Z. Cao, Micelles with ultralow critical micelle concentration as carriers for drug delivery, Nature biomedical engineering, 318-325, 2 (2018).
- 131.E. Blanco, H. Shen, M. Ferrari, Principles of nanoparticle design for overcoming biological barriers to drug delivery, Nature biotechnology, 941-951, 33 (2015).
- 132.W. Xu, P. Ling, T. Zhang, Polymeric micelles, a promising drug delivery system to enhance bioavailability of poorly water-soluble drugs. J Drug Deliv 2013 (1): 1–15, 2013.
- 133.A. Sarris, F. Hagemeister, J. Romaguera, M. Rodriguez, P. McLaughlin, A. Tsimberidou, L. Medeiros, B. Samuels, O. Pate, M. Oholendt, Liposomal vincristine in relapsed non-Hodgkin's lymphomas: early results of an ongoing phase II trial, Annals of Oncology, 69-72, 11 (2000).
- 134.M. Slingerland, H.-J. Guchelaar, H. Rosing, M.E. Scheulen, L.J. van Warmerdam, J.H. Beijnen, H. Gelderblom, Bioequivalence of Liposome-Entrapped Paclitaxel Easy-To-Use (LEP-ETU) formulation and paclitaxel in polyethoxylated castor oil: a randomized, two-period crossover study in patients with advanced cancer, Clinical therapeutics, 1946-1954, 35 (2013).
- 135.T. Dragovich, D. Mendelson, A. Hoos, J. Lewis, S. Kurtin, K. Richardson, D. Von Hoff, 268 A phase II trial of aroplatin (L-NDDP), a liposomal DACH platinum, in patients with metastatic colorectal cancer (CRC)-a preliminary report, EJC Supplements, S82-S83, 5 (2003).
- 136.M. Slingerland, H.-J. Guchelaar, H. Gelderblom, Liposomal drug formulations in cancer therapy: 15 years along the road, Drug discovery today, 160-166, 17 (2012).

- 137.S. Kramer, J. Langhanki, M. Krumb, T. Opatz, M. Bros, R. Zentel, HPMA-Based Nanocarriers for Effective Immune System Stimulation, Macromolecular Bioscience, 1800481, 19 (2019).
- 138.K. Ektate, M.C. Munteanu, H. Ashar, J. Malayer, A. Ranjan, Chemo-immunotherapy of colon cancer with focused ultrasound and Salmonella-laden temperature sensitive liposomes (thermobots), Scientific reports, 1-12, 8 (2018).
- 139.A.M. Nassir, I.A. Ibrahim, S. Md, M. Waris, M.R. Ain, I. Ahmad, N. Shahzad, Surface functionalized folate targeted oleuropein nano-liposomes for prostate tumor targeting: In vitro and in vivo activity, Life sciences, 136-146, 220 (2019).
- 140.M. Chang, M. Wu, H. Li, Antitumor activities of novel glycyrrhetinic acid-modified curcumin-loaded cationic liposomes in vitro and in H22 tumor-bearing mice, Drug Deliv, 1984-1995, 25 (2018).
- 141.E. Wonder, L. Simón-Gracia, P. Scodeller, R.N. Majzoub, V.R. Kotamraju, K.K. Ewert, T. Teesalu, C.R. Safinya, Competition of charge-mediated and specific binding by peptide-tagged cationic liposome– DNA nanoparticles in vitro and in vivo, Biomaterials, 52-63, 166 (2018).
- 142.J.N. Moreira, T. Ishida, R. Gaspar, T.M. Allen, Use of the post-insertion technique to insert peptide ligands into pre-formed stealth liposomes with retention of binding activity and cytotoxicity, Pharmaceutical research, 265-269, 19 (2002).
- 143.J.O. Eloy, R. Petrilli, D.L. Chesca, F.P. Saggioro, R.J. Lee, J.M. Marchetti, Anti-HER2 immunoliposomes for co-delivery of paclitaxel and rapamycin for breast cancer therapy, European journal of pharmaceutics and biopharmaceutics, 159-167, 115 (2017).
- 144.G. Bharadwaj, V. Nhan, S. Yang, X. Li, A. Narayanan, A.C. Macarenco, Y. Shi, D. Yang, L.S. Vieira, W. Xiao, Cholic acid-based novel micellar nanoplatform for delivering FDA-approved taxanes, Nanomedicine, 1153-1164, 12 (2017).
- 145.Y.-H. Zhu, C.-Y. Sun, S. Shen, M.I. Khan, Y.-Y. Zhao, Y. Liu, Y.-C. Wang, J. Wang, A micellar cisplatin prodrug simultaneously eliminates both cancer cells and cancer stem cells in lung cancer, Biomaterials science, 1612-1621, 5 (2017).
- 146.T.-Y. Kim, D.-W. Kim, J.-Y. Chung, S.G. Shin, S.-C. Kim, D.S. Heo, N.K. Kim, Y.-J. Bang, Phase I and pharmacokinetic study of Genexol-PM, a cremophor-free, polymeric micelle-formulated paclitaxel, in patients with advanced malignancies, Clinical cancer research, 3708-3716, 10 (2004).
- 147.L. Chen, X. Sha, X. Jiang, Y. Chen, Q. Ren, X. Fang, Pluronic P105/F127 mixed micelles for the delivery of docetaxel against Taxol-resistant non-small cell lung cancer: optimization and in vitro, in vivo evaluation, Int J Nanomedicine, 73, 8 (2013).

- 148.D.D. Taylor, C. Gercel-Taylor, MicroRNA signatures of tumor-derived exosomes as diagnostic biomarkers of ovarian cancer, Gynecologic oncology, 13-21, 110 (2008).
- 149.E.A. Forssen, M.E. Ross, Daunoxome® treatment of solid tumors: preclinical and clinical investigations, Journal of liposome research, 481-512, 4 (1994).
- 150.M.C. Chamberlain, P. Kormanik, S.B. Howell, S. Kim, Pharmacokinetics of intralumbar DTC-101 for the treatment of leptomeningeal metastases, Archives of neurology, 912-917, 52 (1995).
- 151.R. Leonard, S. Williams, A. Tulpule, A. Levine, S. Oliveros, Improving the therapeutic index of anthracycline chemotherapy: focus on liposomal doxorubicin (MyocetTM), The Breast, 218-224, 18 (2009).
- 152.Y.C. Barenholz, Doxil®—The first FDA-approved nano-drug: Lessons learned, Journal of controlled release, 117-134, 160 (2012).
- 153.J.A. Silverman, S.R. Deitcher, Marqibo®(vincristine sulfate liposome injection) improves the pharmacokinetics and pharmacodynamics of vincristine, Cancer chemotherapy and pharmacology, 555-564, 71 (2013).
- 154.F.C. Passero Jr, D. Grapsa, K.N. Syrigos, M.W. Saif, The safety and efficacy of Onivyde (irinotecan liposome injection) for the treatment of metastatic pancreatic cancer following gemcitabine-based therapy, Expert review of anticancer therapy, 697-703, 16 (2016).
- 155.A.C. Krauss, X. Gao, L. Li, M.L. Manning, P. Patel, W. Fu, K.G. Janoria, G. Gieser, D.A. Bateman, D. Przepiorka, FDA Approval Summary:(Daunorubicin and Cytarabine) Liposome for Injection for the Treatment of Adults with High-Risk Acute Myeloid LeukemiaFDA Approval:(Daunorubicin and Cytarabine), Clinical Cancer Research, 2685-2690, 25 (2019).
- 156.A. Meyerhoff, US Food and Drug Administration approval of AmBisome (liposomal amphotericin B) for treatment of visceral leishmaniasis, Clinical Infectious Diseases, 42-48, 28 (1999).
- 157.M. Alam, C.T. Hartrick, Extended-release epidural morphine (DepoDur[™]): an old drug with a new profile, Pain Practice, 349-353, 5 (2005).
- 158.J. Lister, Amphotericin B lipid complex (Abelcet®) in the treatment of invasive mycoses: the North American experience, European Journal of Haematology, 18-23, 56 (1996).
- 159.G. Lamboley-Gilmert, T. Lacaze-Masmonteil, The Short-Term Outcome of a Large Cohort of Very Preterm Infants Treated with Poractant Alfa (Curosurf®) for Respiratory Distress Syndrome, Pediatric Drugs, 639-645, 5 (2003).

- 160.M.E. Werner, N.D. Cummings, M. Sethi, E.C. Wang, R. Sukumar, D.T. Moore, A.Z. Wang, Preclinical evaluation of Genexol-PM, a nanoparticle formulation of paclitaxel, as a novel radiosensitizer for the treatment of non-small cell lung cancer, International Journal of Radiation Oncology* Biology* Physics, 463-468, 86 (2013).
- 161.N. Erdoğar, G. Esendağlı, T.T. Nielsen, G. Esendağlı-Yılmaz, D. Yöyen-Ermiş, B. Erdoğdu, M.F. Sargon, H. Eroğlu, E. Bilensoy, Therapeutic efficacy of folate receptor-targeted amphiphilic cyclodextrin nanoparticles as a novel vehicle for paclitaxel delivery in breast cancer, Journal of drug targeting, 66-74, 26 (2018).
- 162.E.M. Del Valle, Cyclodextrins and their uses: a review, Process biochemistry, 1033-1046, 39 (2004).
- 163.S. Gaur, L. Chen, T. Yen, Y. Wang, B. Zhou, M. Davis, Y. Yen, Preclinical study of the cyclodextrinpolymer conjugate of camptothecin CRLX101 for the treatment of gastric cancer, Nanomedicine: Nanotechnology, Biology and Medicine, 721-730, 8 (2012).
- 164.B. Tian, S. Hua, J. Liu, Cyclodextrin-based delivery systems for chemotherapeutic anticancer drugs: A review, Carbohydrate polymers, 115805, 232 (2020).
- 165.A. Bertucci, E.A. Prasetyanto, D. Septiadi, A. Manicardi, E. Brognara, R. Gambari, R. Corradini, L. De Cola, Combined delivery of temozolomide and anti-miR221 PNA using mesoporous silica nanoparticles induces apoptosis in resistant glioma cells, Small, 5687-5695, 11 (2015).
- 166.M. Alsehli, Polymeric nanocarriers as stimuliresponsive systems for targeted tumor (cancer) therapy: Recent advances in drug delivery, Saudi Pharmaceutical Journal, 255-265, 28 (2020).
- 167.V.K. Singh, S. M. Yadav, H. Mishra, R. Kumar, R. Tiwari, A. Pandey, A. Srivastava, WS2 quantum dot graphene nanocomposite film for UV photodetection, ACS Applied Nano Materials, 3934-3942, 2 (2019).
- 168. National Cancer institute, Annual Report to the Nation Part 2, <u>https://www.cancer.gov/newsevents/press-releases/2021/annual-report-nation-part-</u> <u>2-economic-burden</u>, October 26, 2021.
- 169.S. Milewska, K. Niemirowicz-Laskowska, G. Siemiaszko, P. Nowicki, A.Z. Wilczewska, H. Car, Current trends and challenges in pharmacoeconomic aspects of nanocarriers as drug delivery systems for cancer treatment, Int J Nanomedicine, 6593, 16 (2021).
- 170.T.c. atlas, <u>https://canceratlas.cancer.org/taking-action/economic-burden/</u>, 2022.
- 171.A.B. Mariotto, L. Enewold, J. Zhao, C.A. Zeruto, K.R. Yabroff, Medical Care Costs Associated with Cancer Survivorship in the United StatesCancer Medical Care Costs in the United States, Cancer

Epidemiology, Biomarkers & Prevention, 1304-1312, 29 (2020).

- 172.N. Fuentes, M. Silva Rodriguez, P. Silveyra, Role of sex hormones in lung cancer, Experimental Biology and Medicine, 2098-2110, 246 (2021).
- 173.J.-F. Shi, C.-C. Liu, J.-S. Ren, M. Parascandola, R. Zheng, W. Tang, H.-Y. Huang, F. Li, L. Wang, K. Su, Economic burden of lung cancer attributable to smoking in China in 2015, Tobacco control, 191-199, 29 (2020).
- 174.R.B. Arbuckle, A.T. Adamus, K.M. King, Pharmacoeconomics in oncology, Expert Review of Pharmacoeconomics & Outcomes Research, 251-260, 2 (2002).
- 175.F. Haddad, A. McLawhorn, Guidelines for reporting health economic research, 2016, pp. 147-151.
- 176.M.Y. Ho, K. Chan, S. Peacock, W.Y. Cheung, Improving the quality of abstract reporting for economic analyses in oncology, Current Oncology, 428-435, 19 (2012).
- 177.M. Rai, R. Goyal, D. Vohora, G. Singh, Chapter 33: pharmacoeconomics in healthcare, Academic Press Boston, 2018, pp. 465-472.
- 178.R. Bosetti, Cost–effectiveness of nanomedicine: the path to a future successful and dominant market?, Nanomedicine, 1851-1853, 10 (2015).

- 179.S. Soares, J. Sousa, A. Pais, C. Vitorino, Nanomedicine: principles, properties, and regulatory issues. Front Chem 6: 360, 2018.
- 180.A. Bracco, M. Krol, Economic evaluations in European reimbursement submission guidelines: current status and comparisons, Expert review of pharmacoeconomics & outcomes research, 579-595, 13 (2013).
- 181.S. Kumar, A. Baldi, Pharmacoeconomics: principles, methods and economic evaluation of drug therapies, Pharm Tech Med, 362-369, 2 (2013).
- 182.Z. Zafari, S. Bryan, D.D. Sin, T. Conte, R. Khakban, M. Sadatsafavi, A systematic review of health economics simulation models of chronic obstructive pulmonary disease, Value in Health, 152-162, 20 (2017).
- 183.H. Baek, M. Cho, S. Kim, H. Hwang, M. Song, S. Yoo, Analysis of length of hospital stay using electronic health records: A statistical and data mining approach, PloS one, e0195901, 13 (2018).
- 184.V. Weissig, D. Guzman-Villanueva, Nanopharmaceuticals (part 2): products in the pipeline, Int J Nanomedicine, 1245, 10 (2015).
- 185.V. Weissig, T.K. Pettinger, N. Murdock, Nanopharmaceuticals (part 1): products on the market, Int J Nanomedicine, 4357, 9 (2014).